Medicaid Medical Management Services

Nurse Aide Program Provider/CNA User Manual

Version 1.0



Revision History

Version	Date	Editor	Description
1.0	5/6/2010	M. Skillman	Initial Draft

Table of Contents

.

•

Page

Ove	erview	1
.1	Document Purpose and Scope	1
.2	System Access and User Type	2
.3	Screen Layout and Overview	3
.4	Accessing the Application	4
Ope	erating Instructions	6
.1	Search for a Nurse Aide	6
.2	Search for a Training Program	8
.3	Search for an Instructor	12
.4	Search for a Testing Site	15
.5	Enroll as a Nurse Aide Training Program (NATP)	18
.6	Train-the-Trainer Application (Log)	22
.7	Search for/Submit a Complaint	24
.8	Access Forms, Links & Lists and FAQ's	28

Table of Figures

Page

3
. 5
. 6
. 7
. 8
. 9
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
19
22
24
25
26
26
28
29
29

Table of TablesPage1-1 System Functions and Users2

1. Overview

1.1 Document Purpose and Scope

The Nurse Aide Program (NAP) End User Manual (Provider/Certified Nurse Aide version) provides Provider, Training Program and Certified Nurse Aide (CNA) users with step by step instructions for navigating the Nurse Aide Program subsystem application.

The End User Manual includes instructions for "Searching for" Nurse Aide Registry and Training Program information, and for submitting online requests and applications. The following functions are described in this manual.

- Search for a Nurse Aide
- Submit a Training Program Application
- Search for a Training Program
- Search for an Instructor
- Search for a Testing Site
- Submit a Train-the-Trainer Registration Application
- Search for and/or submit a Complaint

Each function is described according to name and purpose, and includes step by step instructions. Screen examples and screen descriptions are provided to further explain the procedures.

1.2 System Access and User Type

Provider, Training Program and Certified Nurse Aide users access the Nurse Aide Program application via the Georgia Web Portal by selecting one of the NAP links on the Nurse Aide Tab. Provider, Training Program and CNA users have access to the same general functions.

Function	User
Search for a Nurse Aide	All users
Adverse Findings Report (PDF)	All users
Nurse Aide Forms	All users
Search for a Program	All users
Search for an Instructor	All users
Search for a Testing Site	All users
Enroll as a Nurse Aide Training Program	All users
Train-the-Trainer Registration Application	All users
Search for/Add a Complaint	All users
Suspected Fraudulent Training Programs Report (PDF)	All users
Frequently Asked Questions (PDF)	All users
Links and Lists (PDF)	All users
Manual (PDF)	All users

Table 1-1 System Functions and Users

1.3 Screen Layout and Overview

Each Nurse Aide Program screen displays the screen name/function at the top of the screen, and provides general instructions for navigating the screen. The user can access more complete instructions by clicking the "Instructions" link on the top right corner of each initial search screen. The NAP application screens provide the user with functional bars or links in order to initiate a search, search again, or return to the Main Menu.

The sample screens below provide an illustration of the screen layout

Sample Screen



1.4 Accessing the Application

Provider, Training Program and Certified Nurse Aide (CNA) users can access the *Nurse Aide Program* (*NAP*) system according to the following steps:

- 1. After accessing the Internet, go to the **Georgia Web Portal** by entering the address: <u>.mmis.georgia.</u>. The *Home Page* on the **Georgia Web Portal** is displayed.
- 2. From the *Home Page*, click the **Nurse Aide** Tab. The Nurse Aide *Main Menu* will be displayed.
- 3. The following Nurse Aide Program related-functions are listed on the main menu.
- Search for a Nurse Aide
- Adverse Findings (PDF)
- Nurse Aide Forms (various)
- Program Search
- Instructor Search
- Testing Site Search
- Enroll as a Nurse Aide Training Program
- Train-the-Trainer Application
- Complaint Search
- Suspected Fraudulent Nurse Aide Training Program (PDF)
- Frequently Asked Questions (PDF)
- Links and Lists (various)
- NAP Manual

To access the NAP application, click on the desired link.

Nurse Aide System	
I. Certified Nurse Aide Registry	Search for a Nurse Aide
	Adverse Findings
	Certification Renewal
	Nurse Aide Forms
	Nurse Aide Certification Renewal
	Nurse Aide Out-of-State Reciprocity
	Certification Letter Request
	Change of Personal Information
	Change of Name
II. Nurse Aide Training Program	Program Search
	Instructor Search
	Testing Site Search
	Enroll as a Nurse Aide Training Program
	Table He Tables Berlin Hender (Les)
	Train the Trainer Application (Log)
	Complaint Search
	Suspected Fraudulent NA Training Programs

III. Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)	Certified Nurse Aide Nurse Aide Training Programs
IV. Links & Lists	Published Links & Lists Testing Sites Train-the-Trainer Calendar Other Nurse Aide State Registries Test Nurse Aide Training Program1
V. Manuals	Certified Nurse Aide Nurse Aide Training Programs

<u>Main Menu</u>

Figure 1-2 NAP Main Menu

2. Operating Instructions

2.1 Search for a Nurse Aide

2.1.1 Purpose

The Search for a Nurse Aide function allows users to search for certified nurse aide (CNA) information and verify the certification status of a nurse aide. The user enters at least one search criteria and, by entering additional search criteria, can narrow the search to a specific nurse aide. The Search for a Nurse Aide function consists of two screens: Search for a Nurse Aide and Search for a Nurse Aide - Initial Results.

2.1.2 Instructions

1. Follow the steps in Section 1.4, *Accessing the NAP Application*. Click on the "Search for a Nurse Aide" link from the Main Menu. The Search for a Nurse Aide screen is displayed.

Search for a Nurse Aide - Initial Results

The information you access will validate th entering one or more of the following criter certification letter.	e certification of active or inactive nurse ria and selecting the Search button. The	e aides on the Georgia Nurse Aid e nurse aide's certification numb	e Registry. You may search the certification status by er may be found on the front of the nurse aide's
Last Name :	First Name :	Middle Initial :	
Social Security Number :	Certification Number :	Status : OActive OInact	ve
Search Clear Search			

Main Menu

Figure 2-1 Search for a Nurse Aide

- 2. To search for and verify the certification status of a specific nurse aide, enter the nurse aide's full name in the Last Name, First Name and Middle Initial fields; and/or enter the CNA's social security number in the Social Security Number field; and/or enter the CNA's certification number in the Certification Number field. Social security numbers are entered as (nnn-nn-nnn).
- 3. The default setting for **Status** is active. To search for a CNA with an inactive status, click on the **Inactive Status** radio button.
- 5. Once all search criteria are entered, click the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen to initiate the search. The information entered is validated by the system. If an error message appears, make corrections and click "Search" again.

Search for a Nurse Aide

Instructions

The information you access will validate the certification of active or inactive nurse aides on the Georgia Nurse Aide Registry. You may search the certification status by entering one or more of the following criteria and selecting the Search button. The nurse aide's certification number may be found on the front of the nurse aide's certification letter.

Last Name :	jones First Name : Middle Initial :							
Social Security Number :	Cer	ification Number :		Status :	⊙ Ac	tive 🔘 Inactive		
Search Clea	r Search							
Name	Certification Numb	er Original Ce	tification Date	Expiration Date	Status	Adverse Findings	Reciprocity State	
		12/0	5/2000	12/05/2004	Active	No		۵
		02/0	5/1990	05/25/2006	Active	No	NC	
		06/1	7/1996	06/17/2006	Active	No		
		11/2	1/1996	11/21/2004	Active	No		
		10/0	1/1990	04/30/2006	Active	No		
		11/2	4/1998	08/20/2010	Active	No		
		12/1	2/2001	12/12/2005	Active	No		
1002		04/2	5/2003	04/25/2005	Active	No		
		11/2	6/1996	11/26/2004	Active	No		
		12/0	9/2002	12/09/2004	Active	No		
		01/0	8/2000	06/26/2006	Active	No		
		02/1	9/1999	02/19/2005	Active	No		
		10/2	6/1999	04/13/2006	Active	No		
		12/2	2/1992	08/20/2010	Active	No		
		11/1	6/1998	11/16/2004	Active	No		
			Next Las	t				
545 record(s) found.								

Main Menu

Figure 2-2 Search for a Nurse Aide – Initial Results

- 9. If there are no matches to the search criteria, the message "0 record(s) found" is displayed. The user can search again by entering new search criteria or correcting the original search criteria, and then clicking the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen.
- 10. If the search is successful, a Search for a Nurse Aide Initial Results screen presents. This screen lists the search criteria and displays all the nurse aides matching any of the search criteria. For each result, this screen provides the name of the nurse aides, certification number, original certification date, expiration date, status, adverse findings and reciprocity state.
- 11. This screen also displays the total number of results found. To view the next set of results, click on "Next." To return to the previous set of results, click on "Previous."
- 12. To return to the Search for a Nurse Aide screen and search for another nurse aide, click the "Clear Search" button to clear all fields and enter new search criteria.
- 13. To return to the Main Menu, click the "Main Menu" link.

2.2 Search for a Training Program

2.2.1 Purpose

The Search for a Program function allows users to search for and view nurse aide training program information. Users can search for all training programs in Georgia, or can narrow the search process by entering specific data about a training program, such as the training program name. The user can also enter geographic search criteria and search for a training program convenient to a specific location and within a certain mile radius.

The Search function consists of three screens: Search for a Program, Search for a Program - Initial Results, and Search for a Program - Detailed Results.

2.2.2 Instructions

1. Follow the steps in Section 1.4, *Accessing the NAP Application*. Click the "Program Search" link from the Main Menu. The Search for a Program screen is displayed.

Search for a Program

To search for a s button.	pecific nurse aide tra	ining program or	search for programs with	nin a geographic d	efined area, please	enter search i	nformation and	select the Search
Program Name :			~	Program Number :		Provider ID :		
Program Setting :	N 10	Program Type :	~	Program Status :		*		
City :		State :	GA 💙 Zip :	County :	*	Mile Radius :	No Limit 💌	
Search	Clear Search							

<u>Main Menu</u>

Figure 2-3 Search for a Program

- 2. On the Search screen, enter one or more training program search criteria. The more specific the search criteria, the faster the search. To search for a specific program, select the program name from the **Program Name** drop down list, and/or enter the program number in the **Program Number** field. To search by Provider ID, enter the number in the **Provider ID** field.
- 3. To limit the search to a particular type of training program, select a type from the **Program Setting** drop down list (acute facility, high school, home health agency, nursing home, private school and vocational college).
- 4. To search for a program by status, select a status type from the **Program Status** drop down list (active, closed, expired, involuntary withdrawal, voluntary withdrawal).
- 5. In order to perform a geographic search for a training program, a zip code, city or state must be entered. Enter the five-digit zip code for the search location in the **Zip Code**

field. If the zip code is not known, enter a city in the **City** field, and select a state from the **State** drop down list or utilize the default setting for state which is Georgia.

- 6. Other geographic search criteria may be entered to limit the search. Select a county from the **County** drop down list.
- 7. The default setting for the **Miles Radius** field is No Limit. To search for a training program within a different miles radius, select the preferred miles radius by clicking one of the **Miles Radius** radio buttons.
- 8. Once all search criteria are entered, click the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen. The information entered is validated by the system. If an error message appears, make corrections and click the "Search" button again.

Search for a F	Program - I	nitial Results							Instructions
To search for a spe button.	ecific nurse aid	le training progran	n or search for prog	rams witl	hin a geographic de	efined area, please	enter search	information an	d select the Search
Program Name :				*	Program Number :		Provider ID :		
Program Setting :		Y Program Ty	/pe :	*	Program Status :	Active	~		
City :		State :	GA 💙 Zip :	30307	County :	~	Mile Radius :	No Limit 👻	
Search	Clear Search								
Results are based	on center of C	ity / Zip.							
Results are based To view detailed inf	on center of C formation abo	ity / Zip. ut a specific progra	am, click on a progra	am name	e. The results displa	ayed include miles	rom your sea	arch location.	
Results are based To view detailed inf Name	on center of C formation abo Miles	ity / Zip. ut a specific progra Program Number	am, click on a progra	am name Status	e. The results displa	ayed include miles	rom your sea	arch location.	
Results are based To view detailed inf Name	on center of C formation abo Miles 1.90	ity / Zip. ut a specific progra Program Number	am, click on a progra Type of Program Training	am name Status Active	e. The results displa	ayed include miles i	rom your sea	arch location.	
Results are based To view detailed inf Name	on center of C formation abo Miles 1.90	ity / Zip. ut a specific progra Program Number	am, click on a progra Type of Program Training	am name Status Active Active	e. The results displa	ayed include miles	irom your sea	arch location.	
Results are based To view detailed int Name	on center of C formation abo Miles 1.90 1.90	ity / Zip. ut a specific progra Program Number	am, click on a progra Type of Program Training Training and Testing	Active Active	e. The results displa	ayed include miles I	irom your sea	arch location.	
Results are based To view detailed inf Name	on center of 0 formation abo Miles 1.90 1.90 1.90 1.90	ity / Zip. ut a specific progra Program Number	am, click on a progra Type of Program Training Training and Testing Training and Testing	Active Active Active Active Active	e. The results displa	ayed include miles 1	rom your sea	arch location.	
Results are based To view detailed inf Name	on center of 0 formation abo 1.90 1.90 1.90 1.90 4.70	ity / Zip. ut a specific progra Program Number	am, click on a progra Type of Program Training Training and Testing Training and Testing Training and Testing	am name Status Active Active Active Active Active	e. The results displa	ayed include miles :	rom your sea	arch location.	
Results are based To view detailed inf Name	on center of 0 formation abo Miles 1.90 1.90 1.90 4.70 4.70	ity / Zip. ut a specific progra Program Number	am, click on a progra Type of Program Training Training and Testing Training and Testing Training and Testing Training and Testing Training and Testing	Status Active Active Active Active Active Active Active	e. The results displa	ayed include miles 1	rom your sea	arch location.	

Main Menu

Figure 2-4 Search for a Program – Initial Results

- 9. If there are no matches to the search criteria, a "0 record(s) found" message is displayed. Search again by entering new search criteria and/or by expanding the geographic search area and then click the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen.
- 10. If the search is successful, a Search for a Program Initial Results screen presents that lists the search criteria entered and displays all the training programs matching any of the search criteria. For each result, this screen provides the name of the training program(s), distance in miles from the search location, program number, type of program, program status and address.
- 11. The screen also displays the total number of results found. To view the next set of results, click on "Next." To return to the previous set of results, click on "Previous."

12. To search for another program, click the "Clear Search" button at the top of the screen and enter new search criteria.

OR

- 13. To view detailed information for a training program, click on the name of the program in the **Name** Column. The Add/Edit a Program screen is displayed. This screen provides the following detailed information for the selected program.
 - Program Name
 - Program Setting
 - Program Type
 - Program Status
 - Approval and Withdrawal Date
 - Information for Primary Contact
 - Address, City, State, Zip Code and County
 - Phone Number 1 and 2
 - Fax Number
 - E-Mail and Web Site Address
 - Testing Site (yes or no)
 - Course Book Name
 - Information on Additional Classroom Training Sites
 - Instructors associated with the Program
 - Program Courses associated with the Program

Search for a Program - Detailed Results

Detailed information for your selected Program.

-				
Program Name :				
Program Setting : Nursing Home	Program Type :	Training	Program Status :	Active
Approval Date : 06/05/1989	Withdrawal Dat	te : 06/22/19	92	
Primary Contact Information :				
Last Name: First Name:	Middle Initial:	Social Secu	urity Number:	
Location & Address Information :				
Line 1 :	Phone 1 :	Ext :	Website :	
Line 2 :	Phone 2 :	Ext :	Email :	
City: ATLANTA State: GA Zip: 30329	- Fax:			
County: DeKalb			Testing Site : Y	es
·				
Course Book Name :				
Additional Locations				
Address Information Phone / Fax Err	ail / Web Address T	esting Site		
Em Phone 1 : Evt 106	ail: Y	/es		
Phone 1: Ext. We	: G:			
Fax:				
Return To Search Results				
Create an Attachment				
If you want to attach a document to this Request	, click on "Browse", s	select a docur	ment and then, clicl	on "Att

Figure 2-5 Search for a Program – Detailed Results

- 15. To obtain detailed information for an Instructor associated with this training program, click on the name of the Instructor in the **Instructor** field. The Add/Edit Instructor screen displays.
- 16. Click the "Return to Search Results" button to return to the Initial Results or the previous screen.

OR

21. To return to the Main Menu, click the "Main Menu" link.

Main Menu

2.3 Search for an Instructor

2.3.1 Purpose

The Search for an Instructor function allows users to search for training program Instructors. The user can search for all Instructors associated with a particular training program or can narrow the search to a specific Instructor by entering the Instructors name.

The Instructor Search function consists of three search screens: Search for an Instructor, Search for an Instructor - Initial Results, and Search for an Instructor - Detailed Results.

2.3.2 Instructions

1. Follow the steps in Section 1.4, *Accessing the NAP Application*. Click the "Instructor Search" link from the Main Menu. The Search for an Instructor screen is displayed.

Search for an Instructor

To search for an approved instructor, please enter the search information and select the Search button.

Program Name:			*
Instructor Last Name:		Instructor First Name:	
License Number:		Status:	O Active O Inactive
Search Cle	ear Search		

Figure 2-6 Search for an Instructor

- 2. To search for a specific Instructor enter the name of the Instructor in the **Instructor Last Name** and **Instructor First Name** fields, and/or enter the Instructor's license number in the **License Number** field.
- 3. To search for an Instructor associated with a particular training program, select the name of the training program from the **Program** drop down list.
- 4. The default setting for Instructor **Status** is active. To limit the search to only inactive Instructors, click the **Inactive Status** radio button.
- 5. Once all search criteria are entered, click the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen. The information entered is validated by the system. If an error message appears, make corrections and click the "Search" button again.

6. If there are no matches to the Search criteria, a message displays that states there are "0 records found." Search again by entering new search criteria and then click the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen.

Search for an Instructor

To search for an approved instructo	or, please enter the search in	formation and select the Search button.
Program Name:		~
Instructor Last Name:	Instructor First Name:	
License Number:	Status:	Active ○ Inactive ○ Pending ○ Temporary Approval
Search Clear Search	Add New Instructor	

To view detailed information about a specific Instructor, click on an Instructor Name.

Instructor Name	Туре	License Number	Approval Date	Program	Status
		P54984	03/27/2000		ACTIVE
		R095084	12/19/1997		ACTIVE
		P58403	03/27/2000		ACTIVE
		RN01236	02/01/2010		ACTIVE
		LPN12356	08/23/2010		ACTIVE
5 record(s) found.					

<u>Main Menu</u>

Figure 2-7 Search for an Instructor – Initial Results

- 7. If the search is successful, the Search for an Instructor Initial Results screen presents that lists the search criteria entered and displays all the Instructors matching any of the search criteria. For each result, this screen provides the name of the Instructor, license number, Instructor approval date, type of program, and Instructor status.
- 8. The screen also displays the total number of results found. To view the next set of results, click on "Next" or click on the next numbered set of results. To return to the previous set of results, click on "Previous."
- 9. To return to the Search for an Instructor screen and search for another Instructor, click the "Clear Search" button at enter new search criteria.

OR

- 10. To view detailed information for an Instructor, click on the name of the Instructor in the **Instructor Name** column. The Add/Edit an Instructor screen is displayed. This screen provides the following detailed information for the selected Instructor.
 - Instructor Name
 - Status

- License Number
- License Expiration Date
- Original Instructor Approval Date, Most Recent Approval Date
- Approval Code (Coordinator, Coordinator & Instructor, Instructor, Not Approved)
- Temporary Approval Expiration Date
- Resume (yes or no)
- Train the Trainer (yes or no)
- Date of Most Recent Train the Trainer
- Current Program Information (Program number, program name and start date)
- Previous Program Information (Program number, program name and start date)

Search for an Instructor - Detailed Results

Detailed information for your se	elected instru	uctor.			
Last Name:		First Name:	Middle Initial: E		
Status:	ACTIVE				
License Number:	12	License Expiration Date:	01/31/2006		
Original Instructor Approval Date:	02/09/2005	Most Recent Approval Date:	02/09/2005		
Approval Code:	Coordinator	Temporary Approval Expiration Date:			
Resume:	Yes				
Train-the-Trainer:	Yes	Most Recent Train the Trainer Date:	03/16/2007		
The instructor can be approve more than one program. Training Program Start Date Return To Search Resu	d for End Date Its				
Create an Attachment					
If you want to attach a document t	o this Reques	t, click on "Browse", select a docum	ent and then, clic	k on "Attach File".	
				Browse	Attach File

Main Menu

Figure 2-8 Search for an Instructor – Detailed Results

11. To return to the Search for an Instructor – Initial Results or the previous screen, click the "Cancel" or "Return to Search Results" button at the bottom of the screen.

OR

12. To return to the Main Menu, click the "Main Menu" link.

2.4 Search for a Testing Site

2.4.1 Purpose

The Search for Testing Sites function allows the user to search for a nurse aide testing site. The user can search for all testing sites in Georgia, or by entering specific geographic search criteria, can search for a testing site convenient to a specific location and within a certain mile radius. The Testing Site Search function consists of three screens: Search for Testing Sites, Search for Testing Sites - Initial Results, and Search for Testing Sites - Detailed Results.

2.4.2 Instructions

1. Follow the steps in Section 1.4, *Accessing the NAP Application*. Click the "Testing Site Search" link from the Main Menu. The Search for a Testing Site screen is displayed.

Search for a Testing Site

To search for an approved test site by location, please enter search information and select the Search button.

City :		State : 🛛 GA 🔽	Zip : County :	*
Mile Radius :	No Limit 💌	Program Status :	Active 💌	
Search	Clear Search			

Figure 2-9 Search for a Testing Site

- 2. In order to perform a geographic search for a testing site, a zip code, city or state can be entered. Enter the five-digit zip code for the search location in the **Zip Code** field. If the zip code is not known, enter a city in the **City** field, and/or select a state from the **State** drop down list.
- 3. Other geographic search criteria may be entered to limit the search. To search by county, select an option from the **County** drop down list.
- 4. The default setting for the **Miles Radius** field is No Limit. To search for a testing site within a different miles radius, select the preferred miles radius by selecting an option from the **Miles Radius** drop down list.
- 5. The default Program Status is active. To search by a different status, select an option from the **Program Status** drop down list.
- 6. Once all search criteria are entered, click the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen. The information entered is validated by the system. If an error message appears, make corrections and click "Search" again.

Search for a Testing Site - Initial Results

To search for	an approved test site by	y locatio	on, please enter search information and se	lect the Sea	rch butt	on.					
City :	Atlanta	s	State : GA 💌 Zip : 30032 County :		*						
Mile Radius :	10 💌	F	rogram Status : 🛛 🖌 🖌 🖌								
Search	Clear Search										
To view detail	ed information about a	specific	testing site, click on a testing site name. T	"he results o	lisplaye	d include i	miles fror	n your se	arch locai	tion.	
Program Nan	пе	Miles	Site Address	Status							
		6.80		Active							
1 record(s) fo	und.										

<u>Main Menu</u>

Figure 2-10 Search for a Testing Site – Initial Results

- 7. If there are no matches to the search criteria, a message stating "0 record(s) found" will be displayed at the bottom of the page. Search again by entering new search criteria and then click the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen.
- 8. If the search is successful, a Search for a Testing Initial Results screen presents that lists the search criteria entered and displays all the Testing Sites matching any of the search criteria. For each result, this screen provides the name of the testing site, miles from the search location, site address and program status.
- 9. The screen also displays the total number of results found. To view the next set of results, click on "Next." To return to the previous set of results, click on "Previous."
- 10. To return to the Search for a Testing site screen and search for another Testing Site, click the "Clear Search" button and enter new search criteria.

OR

- To view detailed information for a testing site, click on the name of a testing site in the Name column. The Search for a Testing Site Detailed Results screen is displayed. This screen provides the following detailed information.
 - Program Name
 - Program Setting
 - Program Type
 - Program Status
 - Approval and Withdrawal Date
 - Name of Primary Contact Person
 - Address, City, State, Zip Code and County
 - Phone Number/Secondary Phone Number
 - Fax Number
 - E-Mail and Web Site Addresses
 - Testing Site (Yes/No)
 - Course Book Name

• Additional Locations Information

Search for a Testing Site - Detailed Results

Detailed information for your selected Testing Site.				
Program Name :				
Program Setting : Private	Program Type :	Training and Testing	Program Status :	Active
Approval Date : 09/04/1996	Withdrawal Date			
Primary Contact Information :				
Last Name: First Name:	Middle Initial:	Social Security Nur	nber:	
Location & Address Information :				
Line 1 : Phone	e1:	Ext : Website :		
Line 2 : Phone	2:	Ext : Email :		
City: DECATUR State: GA Zip: 30032- Fax:				
County: DeKalb		Testing Site :	Yes	
Course Book Name :				
Additional Locations				
Address Information Phone / Fax Email / Web Ad	Idress Testing Sit	e		
Defuse To Possel Docutio		_		
Return To Search Results				
Create an Attachment				
If you want to attach a document to this Request, click or	"Browse", select a	document and then, cli	ick on "Attach File"	
			Browse	Attach File

<u>Main Menu</u>

Figure 2-11 Search for a Testing Site – Detailed Results

12. To return to the Search for Testing Sites – Initial Results screen, click the "Return to Search Results" button.

OR

14. To return to the Main Menu, click the "Main Menu" link.

2.5 Enroll as a Nurse Aide Training Program (NATP)

2.5.1 Purpose

This function allows Providers and Training Program users to submit an application for approval/re-approval of a Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program (training program).

2.5.2 Instructions

1. Follow the steps in Section 1.4, *Accessing the Application*. Click the "Enroll as a NATP" link from the Main Menu. The Application for Approval or Re-Approval of a Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program is displayed. Provide information in all the required fields. The required fields are identified by pink shading.

```
Application for Approval or Re-Approval of Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program
```

```
Instructions
```

Please provide th your confirmation	e following inform page. Click the R	ation to be used in processing eview Application link to proce	g your applica ed with the ap	tion. Any hardcop oplication proces:	y documei 8.	ntation required	to approve you	r application	will be listed on
Program Name :				Applic	ation Type :	O Approval	Re-approval		
Program Locatio	n:								
Address Line 1 :			Phor	ne 1 :	Ext :	Website :			
Address Line 2 :			Phor	ne 2 :	Ext :	Email :			
City :		State : 💽 🖌 Zip :	- Fax	:					
County :	*]							
Contact Informat	tion								
Last Name :		First Name :		Middle Initial :	SSN:				
Program Informa	ation								
Course Name :									
Day Class?	◯Yes ◯No	If Yes, enter Classroom Hours :	Lab Hours	s : Clinical Hou	rs :				
Night Class?	◯Yes ◯No	If Yes, enter Classroom Hours :	Lab Hours	s : Clinical Hou	rs :				
Weekend Class?	◯Yes ◯No	If Yes, enter Classroom Hours :	Lab Hours	s : Clinical Hou	rs :				
Additional Class	room Training Site	e(s)							
Address Informa	ation		Phone / Fax		Em	nail / Web Addre	SS		
Line 1 :			Phone 1 : -	- Ext.	Em	nail :			
Line 2 :			Phone 2 : -	- Ext.	We	eb:			
City :	State :	💙 Zip : 🔤 -	Fax : -	-					
County :	~								
Describe the class	ssroom and lab s	pace room dimension, includi	ng seating ca	pacity, writing sp	ace, lightin	ig and temperat	ture control:		
								1	~
								ľ	~

Clinical Training Site(s)							
Clinical Site	4	Address					
	~		~				
- OR -		Line 1 :	Line 2 :	City :		State : Zip :	
					[GA 💙	
Program Coordinator or Instructor (n	nust be a RN)						
-							
Туре	Last Name	First Name	MI Intle		GA License #	Start Date	
×							\odot

List the name, profession and work experience of each health care professional utilized to assist in the instruction of the nurse aide course. Please review federal guidelines regarding supplemental instructors. Examples: CPR certified instructor, guest speaker on Alzheimer, guest speaker on Ombudsman duties etc

Expert Supplemental Instructors								
Last Name	First Name	МІ	Job Title	Work Experience				
					٢			
Preparer's Name : Date : 09/21/2010								
Multiple classes require appropriate lesson plans and the completion of an hourly breakdown form for each class. A minimum of twenty-four hours of clinical rotation is required in a Long Term Care Facility.								
Review Application	Cancel Return	۱ To S	Search Results					

<u>Main Menu</u>

Figure 2-12 Enroll as NATP Application

- 2. Type in the name of the organization/facility in the **Program Name** field.
- 3. Enter complete address information. In the **Address** fields, type in a street address or P.O Box. Enter a city in the **City** field, and the five-digit zip code in the **Zip Code** field. The last four digits of the zip code may be entered, if known. The default setting for **State** is Georgia. To select a different state, click the down arrow in the **State** field, and then click on the name of a state from the drop down list. To select a county, click on the name of a county from the **County** drop down list. **These fields are required.**
- 4. Enter the facility phone number as (nnn-nnn-nnnn) in the **Phone Number** field. Enter an email address in the **E-Mail** address field. It is recommended but not required to enter fax numbers or a Web Site address.
- 5. Enter the name of the main contact person in the First Name and Last Name fields.
- 6. Enter the name of the Course in the Course Name field.
- 7. Indicate whether the program will be offering a day, night and/or weekend class by selecting the *yes* or *no* radio button next to the **Day Class, Night Class** and **Weekend Class** fields.
- 8. If yes is selected, enter the total hours of classroom instruction in the **Classroom Hours** field, the total lab training hours in the **Lab Hours** field and the total clinical training hours in the **Clinical Hours** field.

- 9. In the **Additional Classroom Training Site** field, enter the name of the place and the address where the classroom training will be provided in the first row of the table, and then click the "Add" link. When "Add" is clicked a new row is added to the table and a "Remove" link displays next to the row of information that was just entered. Selecting the "Remove" link will delete the corresponding row of information.
- 10. Enter a description of the classroom and lab space room dimensions, including seating capacity, writing space, lighting and temperature control in the comments box marked as such.
- 11. In the **Clinical Training Site section**, either select from the drop list or enter the name of the agency, the agency's address and the type of patient care unit where the clinical training will be provided in the first row of the table, and then click the "Add" link. When "Add" is clicked a new row is added to the table and a "Remove" link displays next to the row of information that was just entered. Selecting the "Remove" link will delete the corresponding row of information.
- 12. In the **Program Coordinator or Instructor section**, select the type of individual (program instructor, coordinator, both) from the **Type** drop list. Type in the name of the Program Coordinator/Instructor, their title and their Georgia license number in the first row of the table, and then click the "Add" link. When "Add" is clicked a new row is added to the table and a "Remove" link displays next to the row of information that was just entered. Selecting the "Remove" link will delete the corresponding row of information.
- 13. In the **Expert Supplemental Instructors** field, type in the name of an ESI, the Instructor's job title and the Instructor's work experience in the first row of the table, and then click the "Add" link. When "Add" is clicked a new row is added to the table and a "Remove" link displays next to the row of information that was just entered. Selecting the "Remove" link will delete the corresponding row of information.
- 14. In the **Preparer's Name** field, type in the name of the person who is completing the application.
- 15. To return to the main menu without submitting the application, click the "Cancel" button. Otherwise, once all information is entered, click on "Review Application". The information entered is validated by the system. If an error message appears, make corrections and click the "Review Application" link again.
- 16. Once "Review Application" is clicked, a Review screen is presented that displays the information entered on the application. Review the information displayed for accuracy.
- 17. If the information is correct, click the "Submit" button at the bottom of the screen and **go to Step 20.**

OR

- 18. If the information is incorrect, click the "Edit Application" link at the bottom of the screen to return to the Approval/Re-Approval Application screen. Correct the information, and click on "Review Application" again to review the information.
- 19. When all information entered is correct, click the "Submit" button at the bottom of the Review screen.

- 20. Once "Submit" is clicked, a Confirmation screen is presented that verifies receipt of the application and provides a confirmation number. This screen also displays instructions for submitting additional required documentation, links to forms that will need to be completed and returned, and a Nurse Aide Program contact number for inquiries regarding the application. It is recommended to print this page or copy the confirmation number.
- 21. To return to the previous search results, click the "Return to Search Results" button. To return to the Main Menu, click the "Main Menu" link.

2.6 Train-the-Trainer Application (Log)

2.6.1 Purpose

This function allows Providers and Training Program users to register for a Train-the-Trainer workshop.

2.6.2 Instructions

1. Follow the steps in Section 1.4, *Accessing the Application*. Click the "Train-the-Trainer Application" link from the Main Menu. The Train-the-Trainer Registration Application screen is displayed.

To register for a train the trainer workshop, please enter the requested information. Last Name : Last Name : Facility Name : Address Line 1 : Address Line 2 : City : State : GA v Zip : Phone : - Ext. Email : License Number : Session ID : To select a workshop, click on a session from the list below. Session ID : Address Stat1000 In Location Name Address Start Date End Date Limit Available ATL100100 10/13/2009 10/14/2010 30 MAC111509 10/13/2009 11/16/2019 4 0 Ken123 09/27/2010 09/27/2010 30/20/2010 30	Frain the Traine	er Registr	ation Application					
Last Name : First Name : Middle Initial : Facility Name : Address Line 1: Address Line 2: City : State : GA v Zip : County : v Phone : . Ext. Email : License Number : Session ID : To select a workshop, click on a session from the list below. Session ID : Session ID Location Name Address Start Date End Date Limit Available At L100109 10/14/2019 30 16 MAC111509 10/14/2019 4 0 Ken123 0 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30 30 All Sessions are 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM	To register for a trai	in the trainer	workshop, please ente	r the requested information.				
Facility Name :	Last Name :		First Name :	Middle Init	al :			
Address Line 1: Address Line 2: City: State : GA V Zip : County : V Phone : - Ext. Email : License Number : Session ID : To select a workshop, click on a session from the list below. Session ID : Session ID Location Name Address Start Date End Date Limit Available ATL 100109 10/14/2019 4 0 10/13/2009 10/14/2019 4 0 Ken123 009/27/2010 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30 30 All Sessions are 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM	Facility Name :							
Address Line 2: City: State: GA V Zip: County: V Phone: Ext. Email: License Number: Session ID: To select a workshop, click on a session from the list below. Session ID Location Name Address Start Date End Date Limit Available ATL 100109 10/14/2019 30 16 MAC111509 10/14/2019 4 0 Ken123 009/27/2010 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30 30 All Sessions are 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM	Address Line 1 :							
City : State : GA V Zip : County : V Phone : - Ext. Email : License Number : Session ID : To select a workshop, click on a session from the list below. Session ID Location Name Address Start Date End Date Limit Available ATL 100109 Address Start Date End Date Limit Available ATL 100109 Address Address 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30 16 MAC111509 Address 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30 30 All Sessions are 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM	Address Line 2 :							
Phone : Ext. Email : License Number :	City :		State : GA	V Zip : County :	*			
License Number : Session ID : To select a workshop, click on a session from the list below. Session ID Location Name Address Address Start Date End Date Limit Available I1/13/2009 10/14/2010 30 16 NAC111509 11/15/2009 11/15/2009 11/15/2019 4 0 Address All Sessions are 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM	Phone :		Ext. Email :					
Session ID : To select a workshop, click on a session from the list below. Session ID Location Name Address Start Date End Date Limit Available ATL100109 Andress 10/13/2009 10/14/2010 30 16 MAC111509 MAC111509 11/15/2009 11/16/2019 4 0 Ken123 Image: Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30	License Number :							
To select a workshop, click on a session from the list below. Session ID Location Name Address Start Date End Date Limit Available ATL100109 Image: Start Date 10/13/2009 10/14/2010 30 16 MAC111509 Image: Start Date 11/15/2009 11/16/2019 4 0 Ken123 Image: Start Date 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30 30	Session ID :]					
Session ID Location Name Address Start Date End Date Limit Available ATL100109 Image: Anti-Anti-Anti-Anti-Anti-Anti-Anti-Anti-		To select a v	workshop, click on a se	ssion from the list below.				
ATL100109 Image: Constraint of the second secon		Session ID	Location Name	Address	Start Date	End Date	Limit	Available
MAC111509 11/15/2009 11/16/2019 4 0 Ken123 Maximum Section 2010 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30 30 All Sessions are 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM 1PM 1PM 1PM		ATL100109			10/13/2009	10/14/2010	30	16
Ken123 09/27/2010 09/29/2010 30 30 All Sessions are 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM		MAC111509			11/15/2009	11/16/2019	4	0
All Sessions are 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 : 9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM		Ken123	1. A.		09/27/2010	09/29/2010	30	30
		All Sessions a	re 2-Day Sessions. Day 1 :	9AM - 3PM, Day 2 : 9AM - 1PM				
	Deview Amelia	-tion	Deset Application					

<u>Main Menu</u>

Figure 2-13 TTT Application

- 2. Enter the registrant's last and first name in the Last Name and First Name fields. These fields are required.
- 3. Enter the registrant's Facility Name, if applicable.
- 4. Enter the registrant's address in the Address Line 1, Address Line 2, City, State, Zip Code fields. These fields are required.

- 5. Select the registrant's county from the **County** drop down list.
- 6. Enter the registrant's phone number in the **Phone Number** field. Phone numbers are entered as (nnn-nnn). Enter the registrant's email address in the **Email** field. **Note that these fields are required.**
- 7. Select the Train-the-Trainer session that the registrant would like to attend from the schedule by clicking the workshop. The **Session ID** field will populate based on the user selection. **This field is required.**
- 8. Add additional comments in the Additional Comments field.
- 9. To clear all fields and start over, click the "Reset Application" button. Otherwise, once the application has been completed, click the "Review Application" button. A read-only screen will present displaying all information entered into the TTT application.
- 10. If information is incorrect or needs to be changed, click the "Edit Application" button at the bottom of the page. Make necessary edits and click the "Review Application" button. If all information is correct, click the "Submit Application" button.
- 11. A message will be displayed confirming that the application has been processed and the time and location details of the workshop. In addition, an email message will be sent to the registrant confirming the details of the Train-the-Trainer workshop.
- 12. To return to the main menu, click the "Main Menu" link.

2.7 Search for/Submit a Complaint

2.7.1 Purpose

This function allows users to search for a complaint filed about a Nurse Aide Training Program or submit a complaint about a Nurse Aide Training Program. Users can search for complaints that have been filed against a specific training program or by date filed, complaint type.

2.7.2 Instructions

Search for a Complaint

1. Follow the steps in Section 1.4, *Accessing the Application*. Click the "Complaint Search" link from the Main Menu. The Search for a Complaint screen is displayed.

Search for a Complaint

To search for a specific nurse aide training program or search for programs, please enter search information and select the Search button.

Deserver Marris			~
Program Name :			
Address Line :			
City :		State : GA 💌 Zip :	
Date Filed :			
Complaint Type :	Clinical Issue Fee Issu	e Other or/PC Issue Training Issue	
Search	Reset Add Complaint		

Main Menu

Figure 2-14 Search for a Complaint

- 2. On the Search screen, enter one or more complaint search criteria. The more specific the search criteria, the faster the search. To search for a specific complaint, select the program name from the **Program Name** drop down list.
- 3. To limit the search to a particular type of complaint, select a type from one of the radio buttons (Clinical Issue, Equipment Issue, Fee Issue, Instructor/PC Issue, Other, Training Issue).
- 4. Users may also limit their search to complaints filed on a particular date by entering a date in the **Date Filed** field. Dates are entered as (mm/dd/yyyy).
- 5. Once all search criteria are entered, click the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen. The information entered is validated by the system. If an error message appears, make corrections and click the "Search" button again.

Search for a Complaint - Initial Results

To search for a specific nurse aide training program or search for programs, please enter search information and select the Search button.

Program Name :		N	/
Address Line :]
City :		State : GA 💌 Zip :	
Date Filed :	07/01/2009		
Complaint Type :	Clinical Issue Fee Issu	ue Other pr/PC Issue Training Issue	
Search	Reset Add Complaint		

To view detailed information about a specific Complaint, click on an Program Name.

Program Name	Address	Date Filed	Туре
	GA	07/01/2009	Equipment Issue
	GA	07/01/2009	Equipment Issue

2 record(s) found.

Figure 2-15 Search for a Complaint – Initial Results

- 6. If there are no matches to the search criteria, a "0 record(s) found" message is displayed. Users may search again by entering new search criteria and clicking on the "Search" button at the bottom of the screen.
- 7. If the search is successful, the Search for a Complaint- Initial Results screen presents and displays the complaints matching any of the search criteria. For each result, this screen provides program name, address, date filed and complaint type.
- 8. The screen also displays the total number of results found. To view the next set of results, click on "Next." To return to the previous set of results, click on "Previous."
- 9. To view detailed information for a complaint, click the name of the program in the **Program Name** column. The View Complaint Details screen is displayed. This provides the following detailed information for the selected Complaint.
 - Program State Approved (yes/no)
 - Program Name
 - Program Address
 - Complaint Type
 - Explanation
 - Date Filed

View Complaint Details

Detailed Information about your selected complaint.				
Is Program State App	proved ? Yes			
Program Name :				
Program Address :			2 8	2
Complaint Type :	Equipment Issue		If 'Other', enter description :	
Explanation :				
Date Filed :	07/01/2009			
Return To Se	arch Results			

Figure 2-16 View Complaint Details

2.	7	.2.	1

10. To return to the previous search results, click the "Return to Search Results" button. To return to the Main Menu, click the "Main Menu" link.

2.7.2.2 2.7.2.3Submit a Complaint 2.7.2.4

1. On the Search screen, click on the "Add Complaint" button.

Add a Complaint

Please provide the following information to be used in processing your complaint. Please enter as detailed information in your explanation for the complaint. Click the Submit link to proceed with the submission of the complaint.

Is Program State Approv	ed ? Yes No		
Complainant's Name :		Complainant's Phone :	
Complaint Type :	If 'Other', enter description :]
Explanation :			<u>^</u>
			~
Date Filed :	09/21/2010		
Save Complaint	Cancel Return To Search Results		

Figure 2-17 Submit a Complaint

- 2. Indicate whether the program is State Approved by selecting the Yes or No radio button.
- 3. Enter the name of the person who is submitting the complaint in the **Complainant's Name** field.
- 4. Enter the Complainant's phone number in the **Complainant's Phone** field. Phone numbers are entered as (nnn-nnn-nnnn).
- 5. Select the type of complaint using the Complaint Type drop list.
- 6. Enter an explanation of the complaint.
- 7. To submit the complaint, click the "Save/Submit Complaint" button.

8. A message will be displayed confirming that the complaint has been submitted and that the complainant will be contacted by a representative within a number of days to discuss the issue.

2.8 Access Forms, Links & Lists and FAQ's

2.8.1 Purpose

These functions allow Provider, Training Program and Certified Nurse Aide users to access Nurse Aide Program policies and procedures, forms, resource information and frequently asked questions via the Main Menu on the Georgia Web Portal.

2.8.2 Instructions

Provider, Training Program and Certified Nurse Aide users can access Nurse Aide Program policies and procedures, forms, resource information and other related information via the Main Menu of the Nurse Aide tab of the **Georgia Web Portal**.

• Providers, CNA's and Training Programs can access this information from the Main Menu via the *Nurse Aide Program* tab on the portal by clicking on a specific "Form" link, selecting either "Links & Lists" link or one of the links in the "Frequently Asked Questions" section.

Forms: A list of forms is displayed in the "Forms" Section on the Main Menu. This screen provides links to the Certification Renewal form, Change of Information form and Reciprocity Application and various others.

Nurse Aide System	
I. Certified Nurse Aide Registry	Search for a Nurse Aide
	Adverse Findings
	Certification Renewal
	Nurse Aide Forms
	Nurse Aide Certification Renewal
	Nurse Aide Out-of-State Reciprocity
	Certification Letter Request
	Change of Personal Information
	Change of Name

Figure 2-17 Forms

Links and Lists: If the "Published Links and Lists" link is selected, a screen displays that provides links to the Georgia Department of Community Health, Georgia Department of Human Resources, Office of Regulatory Services, Georgia Nursing Home Association, Georgia Hospital Association, Certified Nurse Aide Association and various others. This screen also provides links to various lists including the following: Approved Nurse Aide Training Programs in Georgia, Testing Sites, and other Nurse Aide State Registries.

IV. Links & Lists	Published Links & Lists
	Testing Sites
	Train-the-Trainer Calendar
	Other Nurse Aide State Registries
	Test
	Nurse Aide Training Program1

Figure 2-18 Links and Lists

Frequently Asked Questions: Users can view commonly asked questions related to Certified Nurse Aides and/or the Nurse Aide Training Program by clicking a link in the "Frequently Asked Questions" section.

III. Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)	Certified Nurse Aide
	Nurse Aide Training Programs

Figure 2-19 Frequently Asked Questions